JPWard and Associates LLC

Miromar Lakes Community Development District

Regular Meeting Agenda
December 14, 2017

Visit our Web Site at: www.miromarlakescdd.org

Prepared by:

JPWARD AND ASSOCIATES LLC

2900 Northeast 12th Terrace, Suite 1
Oakland Park, Florida 33334
E-Mail: JimWard@JPWardAssociates.com
PHONE: (954) 658-4900




MIROMAR LAKES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

December 7, 2017

Board of Supervisors
Miromar Lakes Community Development District

Dear Board Members:

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Miromar Lakes Community
Development District will be held on Thursday, December 14, 2017, at 2:00 P.M. at the Beach
Clubhouse, 18061 Miromar Lakes Parkway, Miromar Lakes, Florida 33913.

1. Callto Order & Roll Call

2. Consideration of Minutes:
a) Regular Meeting — November 9, 2017

3. Staff Reports
a) Attorney
b) Engineer
) Asset manager
l. December, 2017 Report
d) Manager
l. Financial Statements for the period ending October 31, 2017

4. Supervisor’s Requests and Audience Comments
5. Adjournment

The second order of business is consideration of the minutes of the November 9, 2017 regular
meeting.

The balance of the Agenda is standard in nature and | look forward to seeing you at the meeting,
and if you have any questions and/or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me directly
at (954) 658-4900.

James P. Ward 2900 NORTHEAST 12™ TERRACE, SUITE 1
) AN OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA 33334
www.miromarlakescdd.org |District Manager PHONE  (954) 658-4900

E-MAIL  JimWard@JPWardAssociates.com



http://www.miromarlakescdd.org/

2|Page
Miromar Lakes Community Development District

Yours sincerely,
Miromar Lakes
Community Development District

omes 2 L) s/

James P. Ward
District Manager

Enclosures
The Fiscal Year 2018 schedule is as follows
October12, 2017 Nevember9, 2017
December 14, 2017 January 11, 2018
February 8, 2018 March 8, 2018
April 12,2018 May 10, 2018
June 14, 2018 July 12, 2018
August 9, 2018 September 13, 2018
a James P. Ward 2900 NORTHEAST 12™ TERRACE, SUITE 1
OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA 33334

District Manager proNe  (954) 658-4900
E-MAIL  JimWard@JPWardAssociates.com

www.miromarlakescdd.org



http://www.miromarlakescdd.org/
http://www.miromarlakescdd.org/

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
MIROMAR LAKES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The Regular Meeting of the Miromar Lakes Community Development District’s Board
of Supervisors was held on Thursday, November 9, 2017, at 2:00 p.m. at the Beach
Clubhouse, 18061 Miromar Lakes Parkway, Miromar Lakes, Florida 33913.

Board members present and constituting a quorum were:

Dr. David Herring Chairman

Mr. Doug Ballinger Vice Chairman

Mr. Alan Refkin Assistant Secretary
Mr. Michael Weber Assistant Secretary

Board members absent were:

Mr. Burnett Donoho Assistant Secretary
Staff present:

James Ward District Manager
Greg Urbancic District Counsel

Paul Cusmano
Bruce Bernard
Charlie Krebs

Audience:

Tim Byal
Mike Rizzo
Jerry Left
Sheryl Parker

Calvin Giordano & Associates
Calvin Giordano & Associates
District Engineer

Miromar Development Corporation

1. Call to Order & Roll Call

Mr. Ward called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. A roll call determined all members
of the Board were present with the exception of Supervisor Donoho.

2. Consideration of Minutes

a) October 12, 2017 Regular Meeting Minutes

1|Page



Miromar Lakes Community Development District November 9, 2017

Mr. Ward asked if there were any deletions, corrections or additions to the
minutes. Mr. Ballinger pointed out there were two typographical errors, which were noted.
Mr. Ward called for a motion for their approval.

Motion was made by Mr. Ballinger and seconded by Mr. Refkin
to approve the minutes of the October 12, 2017 meeting with
corrections, and with all in favor, the motion was approved.

3. Consideration of Agreement with Dex Bender Environmental Consulting

Mr. Ward stated that this agenda item is consideration of an agreement with Dex
Bender Environmental Consulting. He said the part of the transfer of the Army Corps permit
to the District last month requires the District to go through the process of permitting the
riprap in the system. He noted that we discussed two consultants, an environmental
consultant and an attorney who specializes in Army Corps permitting.. He said the Board
could get the process started with the environmental consultant. He stated Dex Bender had
done all of the environmental work on this project and was well renowned in the area for this
type of work. He said, as such, he recommended the firm for consideration, the agreement
provided by Dex Bender. He said the hourly rates were consistent with what he had seen
from other environmental consultants. He added that this company had also done work for
them in the past.

A discussion ensued concerning this consultant, and it was generally stated this
company was good to work with.

Mr. Ward called for a motion.

Motion was made by Dr. Herring and seconded by Mr. Ballinger
to accept the bid of Dex Bender Environmental Consulting as
presented, and with all in favor, the motion was approved.

4, Staff Reports
a) District Attorney

Mr. Urbancic updated the Board concerning the Bellini and Ravenna transfer
of lakes. He stated both communities wanted a transfer of their lakes. He  stated he had
worked with the developer, and a set of documents had been prepared which would come
to the Board on a future agenda. He said there were still some details to be worked out.

Dr. Herring asked about the state of the lakes’ shoreline following the
hurricane. Mr. Urbancic responded that he did not know, but it would be determined. He
said he had requested that the shorelines be in proper certified condition. He added that
there were fountains which needed to be checked as well.

2|Page



Miromar Lakes Community Development District November 9, 2017

A discussion ensued concerning whether fountains were an asset. Mr. Byal pointed
out that the fountains were part of the lakes and should be accepted. Mr. Refkin said he
thought fountains were not an essential part of the water management system.

Mr. Ward responded to Dr. Herring's question concerning damage from the
hurricane. He said Bellini, Isola Bella, and Verona Lago experienced significant hurricane
damage, and it would cost a significant amount to repair the lake banks. He said these
areas were all owned by the residents or whoever and had not been turned over to the CDD
as was usual. He said that was what the CDD was in the process of doing now. Mr. Ward
felt that these particular residents should not have to solve the hurricane damage problem.
He said one of the lakes did have a fountain.

Dr. Herring asked Mr. Ward if it was his position that the CDD should take
over the lakes and be responsible for restoration of the banks for those that had not been
turned over yet. Mr. Ward responded affirmatively for those areas where there were
residents living in the communities, which were Isola Bella, Bellini, and Verona Lago.

Dr. Herring asked if these communities had homeowner associations. Mr.
Ward responded that he was not sure if they all did. Mr. Urbancic said Bellini and Ravenna,
the ones he was working on, were condominiums.

Dr. Herring said at Caprini, where he resided, residents had their own
Homeowner’s Association as well. He said his community had incurred a great deal of storm
damage that had to be repaired. He said he would not expect another community to be
responsible for repairing that damage, and they were doing it themselves. He did not think
the CDD should do these shoreline repairs.

Mr. Ballinger asked if the CDD was supposed to repair this damage whether
the areas were owned or not owned. Mr. Ward responded affirmatively. Dr. Herring
responded the issue was not presented that way. Mr. Ward stated it started a couple years
ago. He said it came up with respect to the Alico litigation and some of the fines which
would have resulted with South Florida. He said at that time, it was said that the CDD would
take responsibility for the water management system and making repairs. He said over the
years the CDD had consistently taken over the assets, and it was in the capital plan. He
added these areas should have been turned over to the CDD years ago, but for some
reason, it had not been done.

Mr. Weber said he had mentioned in the past that Volterra and Ana Capri have
not been turned over to the CDD. He asked what needed to be done for this to occur. He
pointed out that Bellini and Volterra were on the same peninsula, and the channel was
still not turned over to the CDD. Mr. Weber was informed that Volterra would be approved
along with Bellini.

Dr. Herring questioned what the developer would do if the CDD forgot to turn
over a property.

Mr. Urbancic said Bellini and Ravenna, for whatever reason, had configured
their condominiums and made their lakes part of the common element, and he was

3|Page



Miromar Lakes Community Development District November 9, 2017

having to sever them from the common element, which made the process less
logical.

Mr. Urbancic said he did not need anything from the Board at this time, and
this  item would probably be on the next agenda.

Mr. Weber pointed out that fountains addressed the issue of noise abatement which
had come up at the last Board meeting, and these fountains help with the noise from Ben
Hill Griffin and 175. He said the conversation about fountains was important because if they
were the HOA’s responsibility, then the Board would know that if somebody wanted a
fountain, who had to address it. If not, then it would be the CDD’s decision what happened
to the fountains. He said the point of who was responsible was relevant, and the Board
needed to answer that question.

Mr. Urbancic stated he brought the issue of the fountains up because he
knew the maintenance of them was usually an issue.

The Board looked at maps of the proposed areas and the existing fountains.

Mr. Ward said the CDD needed to take responsibility for the lakes in question.
He said it was unfortunate that there had been a hurricane, but the lakes were a part of the
Water Management District. He said what the Board did with the fountain was up to them.

Mr. Weber continued that now the Board was saying they were going to take
over the maintenance of the lakes, but it should not be retroactive to pre-hurricane status.
The CDD should not be reimbursing the unit owners in Bellini for the cost of repairing the
shoreline. This was money that had already been spent, which again was the $3,300
assessment.

Mr. Ward stated in his conversations with these residents, he did not know
what had been spent. Mr. Weber responded about $200,000. Mr. Ward said he would be
surprised if they did not want to be reimbursed, but he had not had that discussion with the
residents yet. He said his concern now was getting a significant piece of the water
management district turned over to the district. He said petitioning the Board for repayment
was a holistically different issue.

Mr. Weber said now would be the time to address the fountains, the hurricane
damage and who’s paying for it, and at what point would the Board be taking it over.

Mr. Ward said he would play devil’'s advocate and say the developer was going
to argue that if whoever the builder was would have turned it over, we would have had the
responsibility of maintaining it and taking on the cost of it. At the end of the day, The
residents have been damaged by their own builder.

Dr. Herring said the Board would be opening a big can of worms because
other communities that had already spent significant amounts of money might look at this
and say, the CDD was taking care of Bellini which was not even part of the CD. He said

4|Page



Miromar Lakes Community Development District November 9, 2017

these residents would feel they were part of the CDD, had done their own reparation and
maybe would want to be paid back.

It was pointed out that it could only be damage to the water management
system.

Dr. Herring said it was still opening a can of worms, and he agreed with Mr.
Weber that this needed to be settled. He said the transfer of that property had not been an
issue until repairs had to be made.

Mr. Ward said nobody knew about it until then.

Mr. Refkin asked Mr. Ward how the Board could set the policy or establish the
policy.

Mr. Ward responded as it related to the fountain, it was simple. The Board
needed to tell him what they wanted to do.

Following discussion, it was noted that generally if a community wanted to add
a fountain or any asset, the community would provide the initial capital, and then give it to
the CDD for maintenance.

Dr. Herring asked if the fountains were costly to maintain. The response was
affirmative.

Mr. Weber questioned if fountains should be part of the water management
system. He stated in his mind, they were not, as fountains were decorative and noise
abatement and were not necessary for water management.

Mr. Bernard said fountains were aesthetic but were also good for the water
management system. He said fountains were big bubblers, and the cascading of the air
into the system put more oxygen into the lake.

Mr. Weber said that basically they were not necessary, and the fact that
fountains improved water quality was just a positive by product.

Mr. Refkin asked the Board to go back in the minutes to when the fountains
were installed. He said the Board was told by the experts that fountains were aesthetic
noise abatement. He said the amount of oxygen in the water, or the BOD rate, was not
important in these lakes because there were no fish.

Mr. Byal commented that he did not see a difference between a fountain, the
trees, and the berms. They were all part of the community and maybe a more holistic view
was important. He said there needed to be an entity to maintain these elements in
perpetuity. It could be the CDD or the HOA, but not the developer.

5|Page



Miromar Lakes Community Development District November 9, 2017

Dr. Herring stated it was for the developer as well. He said they were trying to
sell houses, and when a person saw fountains and landscaping, it was favorable.

Mr. Byal continued that there should be a means by which the community
could sustain all the assets that were produced.

Mr. Refkin commented that he agreed that the approach should not be
fragmented, and there should be a policy and guidelines to follow. He said his issue
personally was that not every community had a fountain, and so why should somebody
outside of an HOA pay for a fountain in another community.

Mr. Byal stated he understood that, and Mr. Refkin had a point, but a more
holistic approach needed to be taken. There were many communities that were not on the
big lake, so should that cost be segregated from the people who do not live on it.

Mr. Refkin commented that people used the big lake for boating and
aesthetics.

Mr. Byal responded that the Surface Water Management System was an
interconnected system that everybody used in order to drain the property of the community.
He said the Board could pick and choose how they wanted to do it, but all they would be
doing was pushing cost around.

Mr. Weber agreed that it was a matter of shifting and who was going to
pay for it. Ultimately, it was paid for by many upset people. The issues of the fountains were
a little different. He illustrated if the CDD was going to take responsibility for the fountains,
then each of the communities that did not have fountains might want fountains because
they did not have to pay for them. If the fountains were the responsibility of the HOA, they
might think twice about them because of the cost.

Mr. Ballinger asked if this issue would be decided today.

Mr. Ward said the fountains did not relate to the project of shoreline
restoration, but it did relate to the Water Management System. He said the CDD was in the
process of getting the properties in the name of the District and then taking on the balance
of the restoration project.

Mr. Weber said he would move to approve Mr. Ward’'s request with
clarification thatit would be from this point forward and not retroactively. Mr. Ward
responded that was fine, and the documents for this issue would be before them next
week.

b) District Engineer — No report.

c) District Manager

6|Page



Miromar Lakes Community Development District November 9, 2017

Mr. Ward stated he had sent the Board members a document, which he noted
was an ongoing document, which had been prepared two days ago. He said there was still
much work to be done to evaluate what kind of hurricane damage there was throughout the
community and what the cost would really be for repairs. He said at the moment the repair
estimate was $800,000. He said the cost of the restoration work was unknown to him,
which included landscaping restoration. He said the figure did include the Water
Management System. Mr. Ward stated he had chopped out the complete capital
improvement budget for the current year, and it would take another $375,000 in cash above
the capital budget in order to fund just the $800,000. He said that would take their cash
balance down to roughly $178,000, once the cleanup work was finished. He said this was an
extremely low cash balance.

Mr. Refkin asked if the figure took into account the environmental attorneys.
Mr. Ward responded negatively.

Mr. Ward continued that the important point was that the Board were going
into a budget year in a couple months in 2018 and there was still a great deal of
landscaping work to pay for and the capital program for 2018 was now completely on hold.
He said the key question was whether the CDD was going to have another assessment in
order to finish the Hurricane Irma relief, restore some of the reserves, and then move on
with the capital program. Or, did the Board want to try to keep the assessment level the
same, which in his opinion would not be a financially sustainable choice, for the next three
or four years.

Mr. Ballinger asked if there was a legal situation to do a special assessment
mid-year.

Mr. Ward responded this could be done. He said the Board would have to go
through the process of levying a special assessment, which required notification to all
property owners, a public hearing, and Board approval. He added that a midyear
assessment process was a little more difficult because the bill was done on the tax rolls in
November. A midyear bill would have to be mailed out. He said the only other alternative
would be to limp through the current year, spend the $800,000, prepare the budget for
Fiscal Year 2019, and then take a look at what it would truly cost and do a one-time special
assessment in addition to the regular special assessment. He said they would go through
that public hearing process and then go back to the regular assessment process beginning
in fiscal year 2020.

Dr. Herring clarified that there were two figures: $152,000 and $146,000 for
Bellini and Isola Bella. He asked if those figures were included in the $800,000. Mr. Ward
responded affirmatively. Dr. Herring asked if the Board had decided that they were, in fact,
going to take ownership of these areas or was it still up for debate.

Mr. Ward said that had just been discussed, and he thought the Board had
decided to do so.

7|Page



Miromar Lakes Community Development District November 9, 2017

Dr. Herring asked what the District was obliged to restore, and could some of
the proposed changes in landscaping be accomplished. Mr. Ward responded that this could
be done.

Mr. Ward said he would separate restoration into water management and
landscaping. He said the CDD has no cost for landscaping restoration, and they did not
have the funds to do any landscaping at this point.

Dr. Herring said then his question was answered, and all the CDD was obliged
to do was clean up, not replace.

Mr. Bernard stated there was a little money for replacement in the
$800,000, and he would like to use that for critical areas. All agreed that was important.
He continued that next month he would be coming to the Board with a proposal for replacing
the landscape with different trees. He said the 175 Berm had an abundance of trees,
approximately 1,200 trees. He said now that they had grown, they could be thinned out,
and possibly used elsewhere. He said other berms were in the same category. He said he
was also looking to install hedges that could not be seen through and for noise abatement.

Mr. Ward said in conclusion from a financial perspective there was an
$800,000 line item that they knew of at the moment plus whatever would be identified over
the next month or two. He said when the Board went into the budget process, he thought it
would be best to identify a long term plan that would be sustainable financially including
building up the reserves, restoring the funding that was lost from Hurricane Irma and putting
the capital program back in place. He said the Board should try to characterize the special
assessment as a one-time assessment that helped to do those things he just mentioned.
He suggested the Board continue with their ongoing regular capital program into the
following year.

Mr. Refkin requested Mr. Ward to give them an idea of the amount of that
assessment, possibly next month.

Mr. Ward said it might be a little early to that in December, but he would try. A
comment was made that if it was $500 for 1900 units, it would be nearly $900,000. In the
overall magnitude of the residences, that should not be a shocker to anybody. Mr. Ward
said he was thinking the special assessment should be characterized as a one-time
assessment and be done as part of the budget process for Fiscal Year 2020, put on the tax
bill one time and collected that way as everyone liked to pay it that way.

Mr. Weber said his understanding was that there would not be an assessment
from the Miromar Master Association. Mr. Byal confirmed this. He said there was a
substantial fund that had been developed over time that allowed them the flexibility to
handle a catastrophe like Hurricane Irma without the necessity of an assessment.

Mr. Weber said when the public meeting about the assessment took place,
they should remember to point out that there would be no special assessment from the
Master Association.

8|Page



Miromar Lakes Community Development District November 9, 2017

Dr. Herring asked if FEMA would be involved in this. Mr. Bernard answered
that the FEMA application had been completed and the state approved it and kicked the
application to the federal level for approval. He said if approval was given, FEMA would
come and take a look at what they have and what had been done. He said they would only
get paid for lands that were maintained by the CDD. He said they did not own any of the
areas where there had been erosion; these were resident properties. He stated the Board
could look for approximately $300,000 to $400,000 for reimbursement; FEMA reimbursed
at 75%.

Mr. Weber clarified that FEMA would not recognize an easement interest. Mr.
Ward said this was true. Mr. Weber pointed out that the two new lakes that the CDD was
about to accept were easements and that would create an issue later. Mr. Ward responded
that was true throughout the entire community as it was in most CDDs.

Mr. Bernard pointed out that an individual resident could apply for FEMA.

Mr. Ballinger asked if the Homeowner Association could apply for
FEMA. Mr. Ward responded they could not unless it was in HOA’s (inaudible).

Dr. Herring asked if the residents had to meet a threshold for what
could be applied for and maybe the Board should let the homeowners’ know that they were
eligible to apply. Mr. Ward responded he wasn’t sure how notification could be done.

Mr. Byal pointed out there was a different threshold for a governmental
agency to try to obtain FEMA payments versus a private citizen. It was said that a
governmental agency that had a public infrastructure asset would be reimbursed, and FEMA
regulations also specifically addressed CDDs. Mr. Byal added it was difficult even for a CDD
to get reimbursed.

Mr. Refkin complimented Mr. Bernard on the work that had been done
on the berm.

An audience member, Ms. Parker, asked if getting reimbursed the
$300,000-$400,000 amount from FEMA, would reduce the $800,000. Mr. Ward said that
would be a decision the Board would have to make sometime in the future. He said they
had no significant funds and did not have enough money to even fund the restoration work
related to this one hurricane. He added they would need to evaluate if the $500,000 in the
bank would be enough, but he did not think it would be. He said if the CDD got extra money
from FEMA, the Board might evaluate putting that in the bank, so there would be more
reserves.

Mr. Ward said as a result of the analysis that was completed two days
ago, there was a requirement under state law that the CDD not expend more money than
what was budgeted in the General Fund in any one fiscal year. He said there was also a
requirement under the law that if the CDD did, within 60 days of the fiscal year end, the
budget must be amended to ensure that it wasn’t exceeded, otherwise there would be a

9|Page



Miromar Lakes Community Development District November 9, 2017

note in the audit. He added that $130,000 had been spent in Hurricane Irma cleanup in the
Fiscal Year that ended 9/30/2017, which put the CDD over their total expenditures that had
been budgeted for Fiscal Year 2017. He said he had done a budget amendment, the third
one for fiscal year 2017, that took $130,000 out of cash and put it into the line items for
Hurricane Reimbursement. This way the budget to actual in the audit will show the actual
expenditures did not exceed the budgeted expenditures. He asked for a motion to adopt
Resolution 2018-2.

Motion was made by Dr. Herring and seconded by Mr. Refkin to adopt
Resolution 2018-2 as described above, and with all in favor, the motion was
approved.

Mr. Ward thanked the Board for their patience on Hurricane Irma issues.

6. Supervisor's Requests and Audience Comment
Mr. Ward called for comments from the Board or the audience.

Dr. Herring stated that he had mistakenly taken a document home that he
had signed at the last meeting that had approved the minutes, and he would bring it to him.

Mr. Left from the audience stated he had just come from a meeting where his
board had passed a resolution authorizing a maintenance easement agreement. He said
the board in the longer term wants to do a deed transfer of the bonds and were prepared to
go to the owners, get their approval down the road, and get that transfer done. The Board
thanked him.

Mr. Ward called for further comments from the audience.

Dr. Herring asked Mr. Byal to convey their appreciation to Margaret for the
absolutely amazing job she had done and continued to do to bring the community back.

Ms. Parker from the audience stated the issue where she resided was where
the water cut in and ripped the shoreline. She said a great job had been done the first time
to rebuild it. Mr. Bernard explained that months ago was the first time the Parker’s property
had been repaired. He said a berm and sea wall had been put in, but shortly after, there
had been a heavy rain, and it had to be fixed again. Then the hurricane did more damage at
the same location. He explained to Ms. Parker that the worst areas were being fixed first.
He said Ms. Parker’s property still had its riprap, but some of the fill material and the sod
had been pulled back. He pointed out that the waves just go over the sea wall and pull it
back. He said there was a list, and when money was available, those areas would be
repaired.

Ms. Parker commented that the community had spent a great deal of money
repairing this issue the first time, and in her opinion, it was not truly done correctly. Mr.

10|Page



Miromar Lakes Community Development District November 9, 2017

Bernard told her that the repair work was an approved design that had gone to the County
for permit. He said there were no warranties for an Act of God, and the damage was the
same for many houses in her neighborhood. He added that without the hurricane, the
damage would not have appeared.

Mr. Ward asked her what she was asking the Board to do. She responded she
was asking the Board to make her berm safe, so she would not have that wash out anymore.
Mr. Ward replied that unfortunately the Board would not be able to do anything until there
was sufficient funding, which would be at least a year out.

Mr. Bernard told Ms. Parker that right now there were areas that needed
some fill put in. She responded she could not get anyone to fill right now. Mr. Bernard said
he would not have a problem getting fill in there, but the riprap would be repaired when the
next phase of hurricane repairs were begun. He explained to her that because the repair
had been recently done, the hurricane was able to do the damage. She asked if he felt the
soil had now compacted enough, and he responded affirmatively.

7. Adjournment

Mr. Ward asked for a motion to adjourn.

Motion was made by Dr. Herring and seconded by Mr. Refkin to
adjourn the meeting, and with all in favor, the motion was
approved.

The meeting was adjourned about 3:22 p.m.

James P. Ward, Secretary Dr. David Herring, Chairman

11|Page



Civil Engineering/Roadway
& Highway Design

Coasta! Ergineering
Cade Enforcement

Construction Engineering
& Inspection (CEN)

Construction Services

Contract Government
Services

Data Technologies &
Oevelepment

Electrical Engineering
Emergency Management
Engineering
Environmental Services
FacHities Management

Geographic Information
Systams {GIS)

Indoor Alr Quality

Land Development
Landscape Architecture
Municipaf Engineering
Planning
Redevelopment
Surveying & Mapping
Traffic Engineering
Transportation Planning
Urban Design
Water/Wastewater
Treatment Facililies

Website Development/
Computer Graphics

GSA Coniract Holder

1800 Eller Drive
Suite 600

Fort Lauderdale, FL
33318
954.921.7781 phone
954 .921.8807 fax

www.cgasolutions.com

FORTLAUDERDALE

Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.
EXCEPTIONAL SOLUTIONS™

Memorandum
Date: Decemberl, 2017
To: James P. Ward- District Manager
From: Bruce Bernard - Field Manager
Paul Cusmano — Asset Manager
Subject: Miromar Lakes CDD
Asset Management Report- November 2017

CGA Project # 13-5692

Lake Maintenance

CDD staff has received the bids for the lake maintenance contract, and will
commence with reviewing and evaluating the vendor’s proposals. CDD staff will
be presenting the review of the bids to the CDD’s Board of Supervisors at the
January 2018 meeting for their consideration.

The recent hurricane, Hurricane Irma, damaged both lake banks and rip-rap
seawalls in both the Isola Bella and Verona Lago subdivisions. CDD Staff has a
contractor, Dragonfly Ponds, repairing both subdivision banks and walls at this
time. The CDD contractor is dredging the lake to recapture eroded fill material
and correcting the areas by the use of Geo-Tube bags to restore the lake banks
prior to the rip-rap seawall installation. Photo attached

Staff inspected all of the CDD maintained lake(s) shoreline to determine the fuli
extent of the Hurricane Irma damage as it pertains to lake bank erosion and rip-
rap concerns. Staff is preparing an estimate of additional maintenance repairs
required for next year’s fiscal budget due to the storm damage. Photos
attached

WESTPALM BEACH PORT ST. LUCIE HOMESTEAD TAMPA / CLEARWATER JACKSONVILLE



Civil Engineering/Roadway
& Highway Design

Coastal Engineering
Code Enforcement

Construction Engineering
& Inspection (CEl)

Canstruetion Services

Contract Government
Services

Data Technologies &
Developmant

Electrical Engineering
Emergency Management
Engineering
Environmentat Services
Facilities Management

Geographic Information
Systems (GIS)

Indoar Air Quality

Land Development
Landscape Architecture
Municipal Engineering
Planning
Redevelopment
Surveying & Mapping
Traffic Engineering
Transportaticn Planning
Urban Design
Water/Wastewater
Treatment Facilities

Website Development/
Computer Graphics

GSA Gontract Holder

1800 Eller Drive
Suite 600

Fort Lauderdale, FL
33316
9549217781 phone
954.921.8807 fax

www.cgasolutions.com

FORT{.AUDERDALE

Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.
EXCEPTIONAL §OLUTIONS™

Landscape Maintenance

BrightView Landscaping and their subcontractors are continuing with working
on Hurricane Irma related debris removal. CDD staff approved the proposal for
the I-75 berm for the cutting back of tree limbs, resetting of trees if possible,
grinding tree stumps were acceptable, and removing and chipping of Hurricane
Irma generated material. The crews have removed the material from the Lake
5/6 south berm, and chipped tree limbs and branches with the clippings being
used within the plant beds. Larger tree trunks are being hauled off-site for
disposal.

CDD staff has been notified by FEMA of its inclination to consider Miromar
Lakes CDD impacts for reimbursement of select debris recovery aspects, and an
on-site meeting with the FEMA representative is scheduled for December 5,
2017, to review hurricane affected locations. CDD staff has been compiling
Hurricane Irma debris related proposals / contracts, invoices, canceled checks,
pictures, and field monitoring reports to upload to the FEMA PA Notification
Account site for potential reimbursement.

Stormwater Maintenance

CDD staff has issued a purchase order to M.R.I. to begin there inspection
process of the drainage outfalls and any interconnecting piping that is
maintained by the CDD. This inspection will allow for a three year capital
program funding to be allocated for the identified locations within the system
that need cleaning and removal of sand and debris. This inspection will be
performed once lake levels have returned to more normal elevations.

Permit Compliance

SFWMD Notice of Inspection letter dated September 18, 2015, remaining open
items / updates are as follows:

1. Application — Miromar Lakes Phase 1
a. Lake bank erosion - Erosion to the lake shoreline has occurred in
some areas of Lakes 6H, 61, and 6J. Lake 61 has a drop of four (4) feet
between lots. Also, erosion has occurred near control structure
CS#1. Restore the lake shorelines to substantial compliance with
permit.

WEST PALM BEACH PORT ST, LUGIE HOMESTEAD TAMPA/ CLEARWATER JAGKSONVILLE



Civil Engineering/Roadway
& Highway Design

Coastal Engineering
Code Enforcement

Construction Engineering
& Inspection (CEI)

Construction Services

Contract Government
Services

Data Technologies &
Development

Electrical Engineering
Emergency Management
Engineering
Environmental Services
Facilities Management

Geographic Information
Systems (GIS)

Indoor Air Quality

Land Development
Landscape Architecture
Municipal Engineering
Planning
Redevelopment
Surveying & Mapping
Traffic Engineering
Transportation Planning
Urban Design
Water/Wastewater
Treatment Facilities

Website Development/
Computer Graphics

GSA Contract Holder

1800 Eller Drive
Suite 600

Fort Lauderdale, FL
33316
954.921.7781 phone
954.921.8807 fax

www.cgasolutions.com

FORT LAUDERDALE

Calvin, Giordano & Associates, Inc.

EXCEPTIONAL S$SOLUTIONS™

Shoreline erosion mitigation efforts have been incorporated into
the CCD Capital Improvements budget(s) from 2016-2020. The CDD
itself has taken efforts to implement the maintenance repairs with
prior approval from affected Homeowners Associations (HOA's)
(shoreline erosion mitigation has begun and has been completed in
four of the fourteen subdivisions to be repaired)

2. Application 030128-2 Mediterranean Village Phase 4 Vivaldi
a. Lake bank erosion - Erosion to lake shoreline has occurred in some
areas on Lake 6H. Restore the lake shoreline to comply with
permit.
Shoreline erosion mitigation efforts for this permit will be
addressed within the Capital Improvements budget year 2018-
2019.

WEST PALM BEACH PORT ST. LUCIE HOMESTEAD TAMPA / CLEARWATER JACKSONVILLE















JPWard and Associates LLC

Miromar Lakes Community Development District

Financial Statements

October 31, 2017

Visit our web site: www.miromarlakescdd.org

Prepared by:

JPWARD AND ASSOCIATES, LLC

2900 Northeast 12th Terrace
Suite 1
OAKLAND PARK, FLORIDA 33334
E-MAIL: JIMWARD@JPWARDASSOCIATES.COM
PHONE: (954) 658-4900




JPWard and Associates LLC

Miromar Lakes Community Development District

Table of Contents
Page
Balance Sheet—All Funds 1-2
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
General Fund 3-5
Debt Service Fund
Series 2012 Bonds 6
Series 2015 Bonds 7

JPWard & Associates, LLC
2900 Northeast 12th Terrace
Suite 1
Oakland Park, Florida 33334

(954) 658-4900




Miromar Lakes Community Development District
Balance Sheet
for the Period Ending October 31, 2017

Governmental Funds

Debt Service Funds Account Groups
Totals

Capital General Long General Fixed (Memorandum
General Fund Series 2012 Series 2015 Project Fund Term Debt Assets Only)

Assets
Cash and Investments
General Fund - Invested Cash $ 495,080 S - S - $ - S - S - S 495,080
Debt Service Fund
Interest Account - 4 - - - - 4

Sinking Account - - - - - - -

Reserve Account - 453,763 888,181 - - - 1,341,944
Revenue - 396,015 646,219 - - - 1,042,234
Prepayment Account - 0 1,579,535 - - - 1,579,535

Due from Other Funds
General Fund - - - - - - -
Debt Service Fund(s) - - - - -
Market Valuation Adjustments - - - -
Accrued Interest Receivable - - - - - - -
Assessments Receivable - - - - - - -
Accounts Receivable - - - - - - -

Amount Available in Debt Service Funds - - - - 849,782 - 849,782

Amount to be Provided by Debt Service Funds - - - - 27,310,218 - 27,310,218

Investment in General Fixed Assets (net of

depreciation) - - - - - 36,514,917 36,514,917
Total Assets $ 495,080 S 849,782 $ 3,113,934 S - $ 28,160,000 $ 36,514,917 $ 69,133,714

Prepared by:
Unaudited JPWARD and Associates, LLC 1



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
Balance Sheet
for the Period Ending October 31, 2017

Governmental Funds

Debt Service Funds Account Groups
Totals
Capital General Long General Fixed (Memorandum
General Fund Series 2012 Series 2015 Project Fund Term Debt Assets Only)
Liabilities
Accounts Payable & Payroll Liabilities $ - $ - S - S - S - S - S -

Due to Other Funds -
General Fund - - - - - - R
Debt Service Fund(s) - - - - - - -
Bonds Payable - _

Current Portion - - - - 1,115,000 - 1,115,000
Long Term - - - - 27,045,000 - 27,045,000
Total Liabilities $ - S - S - S - $ 28,160,000 S - $ 28,160,000

Fund Equity and Other Credits

Investment in General Fixed Assets - - 36,514,917 36,514,917
Fund Balance
Restricted
Beginning: October 1, 2017 (Unaudited) - 849,530 3,113,235 - - - 3,962,765
Results from Current Operations - 252 699 - - - 951
Unassigned
Beginning: October 1, 2017 (Unaudited) 423,111 - - 423,111
Results from Current Operations 71,969 - - 71,969
Total Fund Equity and Other Credits $ 495,080 S 849,782 $ 3,113,934 S - S - $ 36,514,917 $ 40,973,714
Total Liabilities, Fund Equity and Other Credits $ 495,080 S 849,782 $ 3,113,934 S - $ 28,160,000 $ 36,514,917 $ 69,133,714
Prepared by:

Unaudited JPWARD and Associates, LLC 2



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through October 31, 2017

Total Annual % of

Description October Year to Date Budget Budget

Revenue and Other Sources

Carryforward S - - S - N/A
Interest
Interest - General Checking 21 21 300 7%
Special Assessment Revenue
Special Assessments - On-Roll - - 911,287 0%
Special Assessments - Off-Roll 113,648 113,648 454,590 25%
Miscellaneous Revenue - - 0 N/A
Intragovernmental Transfer In - - 0 N/A
Total Revenue and Other Sources: $ 113,668 113,668 $ 1,366,177 8%

Expenditures and Other Uses

Legislative

Board of Supervisor's - Fees - - 12,000 0%

Board of Supervisor's - Taxes - - 918 0%
Executive

Professional Management 3,333 3,333 40,000 8%
Financial and Administrative

Audit Services - - 5,200 0%

Accounting Services - - - N/A

Assessment Roll Services - - 18,000 0%

Arbitrage Rebate Services - - 1,000 0%
Other Contractual Services

Legal Advertising 50 50 1,200 4%

Trustee Services - - 7,900 0%

Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Fees - - 2,400 0%

Bank Services 32 32 550 6%
Travel and Per Diem - - - N/A
Communications & Freight Services

Postage, Freight & Messenger 52 52 400 13%
Insurance 5,778 5,778 5,800 100%
Printing & Binding - - 1,200 0%
Website Development - - 1,000 0%

Prepared by:
Unaudited JPWARD and Associates, LLC



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through October 31, 2017

Total Annual
Description October Year to Date Budget
Office Supplies - - - N/A
Subscription & Memberships 175 175 175 100%
Legal Services
Legal - General Counsel - - 30,000 0%
Legal - Litigation - - - N/A
Legal - Center Place - Special Counsel - - 30,000 0%
Legal - Center Place - - - N/A
Land Exchange - Salerno - - - N/A
Other General Government Services
Engineering Services - General Fund - - 15,000 0%
NPDES - - 250 0%
Asset Administration Services 833 833 10,000 8%
Center Place - - - N/A
Sub-Total: 10,254 10,254 182,993 6%

Stormwater Management Services

Professional Services

Asset Management 2,317 2,317 27,800 8%

Mitigation Monitoring - - 500 0%
Utility Services

Electric - Aeration Systems 339 339 4,400 8%
Lake System

Aquatic Weed Control 5,464 5,464 65,568 8%

Lake Bank Maintenance - - 3,000 0%

Water Quality Testing - - 13,840 0%

Water Control Structures - - 11,000 0%

Grass Carp Installation - - - N/A

Litoral Shelf Barrier/Replanting - - - N/A

Aeration System - - 2,000 0%
Wetland System

Routine Maintenance 3,133 3,133 42,100 7%
Other Current Charges - - - N/A
Capital Outlay

Aeration Systems - - 10,800 0%

Littortal Shelf Replanting/Barrier - - 6,000 0%

Prepared by:
Unaudited JPWARD and Associates, LLC



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through October 31, 2017

Total Annual
Description October Year to Date Budget
Lake Bank Restoration - - - N/A
Turbidity Screens - - 13,800 0%
Erosion Restoration - - 264,253 0%
Contingencies - - 3,000 0%
Sub-Total: 11,253 11,253 468,061 2%

Landscaping Services

Professional Management

Asset Management 3,117 3,117 37,400 8%
Utility Services
Electric - - - N/A
Irrigation Water - - 5,000 0%
Repairs & Maintenance
Public Area Landscaping - - 452,000 0%
Irrigation System 2,507 2,507 8,000 31%
Well System - - 1,000 0%
Plant Replacement - - 30,000 0%
Other Current Charges
Lee County -Ben Hill Griffin Landscape - - 51,000 0%
Charlotte County Assessments - - 375 0%
Hendry County - Panther Habitat Taxes - - - N/A
Operating Supplies
Mulch 14,567 14,567 19,000 77%
Capital Outlay - - 111,348 0%
Sub-Total: 20,191 20,191 715,123 3%
Total Expenditures and Other Uses: S 41,699 41,699 $ 1,366,177 3%
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Fund Balance 71,969 71,969 -
Fund Balance - Beginning 423,111 423,111 526,359
Fund Balance - Ending $ 495,080 495,080 $ 526,359

Prepared by:
Unaudited JPWARD and Associates, LLC



Miromar Lakes Community Development District
Debt Service Fund - Series 2012 Bonds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Through October 31, 2017

Description
Revenue and Other Sources
Carryforward
Interest Income
Reserve Account
Prepayment Account
Revenue Account
Interest Account
Special Assessment Revenue
Special Assessments - On-Roll

Special Assessments - Off-Roll

Expenditures and Other Uses

Debt Service
Series 2012 Bonds
Series 2012 Bonds

Interest Expense
Series 2012 Bonds

Fund Balance - Beginning

Total Annual % of
October Year to Date Budget Budget
$ - - $ - N/A
53 53 40,000 0%
- - - N/A
199 199 30 664%
- - - N/A
- - 801,872 0%
- - 160,379 0%
Special Assessments - Prepayments - - - N/A
Operating Transfers In (From Other Funds) - - - N/A
Total Revenue and Other Sources: $ 252 252 $ 1,002,281 N/A
Principal Debt Service - Mandatory
- - S 465,000 0%
Principal Debt Service - Early Redemptions
- - - N/A
- - 537,281 0%
Operating Transfers Out (To Other Funds) - - - N/A
Total Expenditures and Other Uses:  $ - - $ 1,002,281 N/A
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Fund Balance 252 252 (0)
849,530 849,530 870,552
S 849,782 849,782 $ 870,551

Fund Balance - Ending

Prepared by:

Unaudited JPWard and Associates, LLC



Unaudited

Miromar Lakes Community Development District
Debt Service Fund - Series 2015 Bonds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Through October 31, 2017

Total Annual % of
Description October Year to Date Budget Budget
Revenue and Other Sources
Carryforward S - - S - N/A
Interest Income
Reserve Account 31 31 90,000 0%
Prepayment Account 346 346 - N/A
Revenue Account 322 322 - N/A
Special Assessment Revenue
Special Assessments - On-Roll - - 246,240 0%
Special Assessments - Off-Roll - - 1,179,635 0%
Special Assessments - Prepayments - - - N/A
Operating Transfers In (From Other Funds) - - - N/A
Bond Proceeds - - - N/A
Total Revenue and Other Sources: $ 699 S 699 $ 1,515,875 N/A
Expenditures and Other Uses
Debt Service
Principal Debt Service - Mandatory
Series 2015 Bonds - - $ 650,000 0%
Principal Debt Service - Early Redemptions
Series 2015 Bonds - - - N/A
Interest Expense
Series 2015 Bonds - - 865,875 0%
Operating Transfers Out (To Other Funds) - - - N/A
Total Expenditures and Other Uses:  $ - - $ 1,515,875 N/A
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Fund Balance 699 699 -
Fund Balance - Beginning 3,113,235 3,113,235 -

Fund Balance - Ending $ 3,113,934

3,113,934 S -

Prepared by:

JPWard and Associates, LLC



	ML  - Cover Page - Agenda
	ML - Agenda 12 14 2017  FINAL
	MIROMAR LAKES 11-09-17 Meeting.nd
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
	MIROMAR LAKES
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
	The Regular Meeting of the Miromar Lakes Community Development District’s Board of Supervisors was held on Thursday, November 9, 2017, at 2:00 p.m. at the Beach Clubhouse, 18061 Miromar Lakes Parkway, Miromar Lakes, Florida 33913.

	ML - Asset Management Report - 12 14 2017
	ML - Financial Statements-Unaudited 10 31 2017
	ML  - Cover Page - Financial Statements XX
	ML  - Table of Contents - Financial Statements XX
	ML - Financial Statements-Unaudited 10 31 2017
	Balance Sheet
	GF - Monthly P&L
	DSF 2012 - Monthly P&L 
	DSF 2015 - Monthly P&L




<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice




<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice




<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice



